
                 
  Public Notice of Meeting 

                            WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE  
                      PUBLIC HEARING AND SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
                                                    Tuesday, April 9, 2019 
                   Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 

          6:30 p.m. 
  

  
I. CALL TO ORDER-Matthew Ballou-Chair  

 
II. PUBLIC HEARING-UNANTICIPATED REVENUE 

 
III. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda. This is also the 

public’s opportunity to speak to any topic concerning the school district.  No complaints regarding specific staff 
members will be heard during a public meeting in accordance with policy KEB.  The District has established 
separate procedures for complaints against individual employees.   

  
V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 

a. Reports  
i. Superintendent’s Report   

ii. Business Administrator’s Report 
iii. Principals’ Reports  
iv. Curriculum Coordinator’s Report  

b. Letters/Information 
i. Right to Know Request 

ii. Rescind Resignation 
iii. Donation 

 
VI. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
VII. Board Correspondence & Public Input Discussion/Joint Mailbox 

 
VIII. ACTION ITEMS 

a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 
b. Form Food Service Committee 
c. Committee Assignments/Wellness Committee 
d. Community Request to Restrict Transferring 2019-2020 Funds 
e. Technology Audit 
f. Tyler Tech Contract 
g. Signatures for Infrastructure Fund 
h. Policies 

i. BZZZ-School Board Member Stipends 
ii. DFA-Annual Re-adoption 

 
IX. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
X. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES  

a. Retirements/Resignations 
i. Marcia Contarino-WLC English Teacher 

ii. David Finch-WLC Physical Education Teacher 
iii. William Fox-WLC MS Science Teacher 
iv. Judi Wing-WLC Art Teacher 
v. Kevin Verratti-Technology Director 

 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 



 
 

 
XII. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  

 
XIII. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (B) (C) 

i. Personnel Matters 
 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT  
 

INFORMATION:  Next School Board Meeting‐April 30, 6:30 PM at FRES‐Library 

 
The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, 

gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: April 9, 2019 

 

To:       Bryan K. Lane, Superintendent of Schools 

             School Board Members 

 

From:   Lise Tucker, Business Administrator 

 

Re:     RSA 198:20-b Hearing for Unanticipated Revenue 

 

 

RSA 198:20-b provides that “… any school district at an annual meeting may adopt an article authorizing 

indefinitely, until specific rescission of such authority, the school board to apply for, accept and expend, 

without further action by the school district, unanticipated money from a state, federal or other 

governmental unit or a private source which becomes available during the fiscal year.” 

 

The School District adopted the provision of this law at the annual district meeting in 2015.  The reason 

for this is that, while every attempt is made in developing budgets to estimate the amount of grants and 

private donations, much of what will be available and received is unknown at that time.  This process 

allows the School District to take advantage of grant and private donation opportunities that occur during 

the year which were not or could not have been anticipated in advance. 

 

RSA 198:20-b goes on to provide that “for unanticipated funds in the amount of $5,000 or more, the 

school board shall hold a prior public hearing on the action to be taken...” 

 

In the Special Revenue Fund 06 we budgeted $258,652.  We anticipate receiving/spending $343,570. 

In summary, this represents $84,918 in excess of the appropriations.  A detailed breakdown of the source 

of funds is attached. 

 

The process for the hearing is as follows: 

1. Chairman opens the Hearing. 

2. Chairman provides an explanation of the purpose of the hearing and reviews the breakdown of 

the funding sources. 

3. Chairman accepts comments/questions/discussion from School Board members. 

4. Chairman accepts comments/questions/discussion from the public. 

5. Chairman closes the Hearing, returns to the regular school board meeting. 

6. Motion is made by a Board member to receive and expend the funds for the various grants and 

programs.  (Suggested motion:  I move to accept and expend an additional $84,918 for the 

purposes outlined in the special programs.) 

7. Vote on the motion.  
 

 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

  192 Forest Road 

Lyndeborough, NH 03082 

 Bryan K. Lane    Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 

 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 

  

  

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  



 Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District

Unanticipated Revenue per RSA 198:20B 

GRANT TITLE Budgeted Allocation/Exp Variance

IDEA 145,228 147,381 2,153

IDEA Preschool 2,424 2,569 145

Title I 85,000 90,995 5,995

Title I Reallocation 0 19,712 19,712

Title IIA 25,000 45,055 20,055

Title IIA Reallocation 0 23,100 23,100

Title IVA 0 14,757 14,757

Various Local Grants 1,000 0 (1,000)

TOTAL 258,652 343,570 84,918

H:\LT\Forecast\RSA19820B\18-19



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
APRIL 9, 2019 

 
With both Lise Tucker and Kevin Verratti leaving within the next few weeks we are creating 
protocols to ensure that the business of the district and the technology within the district will continue 
to function appropriately.  We will be looking to get support from the Municipal Association to have 
temporary BA help come in.  Our district technology assistant is working with Mr. Verratti to have 
access to all of the networks and vendors to handle any situation that may arise. 
 
Tonight I will be distributing a request for payment of Technology Infrastructure Funds.  The form 
was due on April 1 but the district has applied for and been granted an extension.  By signing the 
form, you will be approving the receipt of $6,465.60 which funded a portion of the security 
infrastructure that was put in place at WLC.  The project was completed.  Upon receiving the 
signatures of the board, the form will be notarized and sent to the DOE so we can receive the funds. 
 
I have met with the middle school staff along with the school counselors and the administration to 
discuss the different possibilities for creating modifications to the middle school program.  We have 
solidified the schedule for students taking unified arts classes.  This schedule will allow for students 
to take band, chorus and foreign language without missing class time from a major subject area.  As 
noted in the Principals report, the middle school teachers will be creating a pilot program to help 
challenge students.  We will be meeting again soon and the goal is to present a program option to 
parents in early May to get feedback and then bring the program proposal to the school board. 
 
I have met with the Emergency Management team for Wilton which includes representatives from 
the town office, Red Cross, police and fire departments along with a representative from the High 
Mowing School.  The Red Cross has done an inspection of Florence Rideout and the process for 
determining capacity has been completed.  Florence Rideout is the emergency shelter for the Town 
of Wilton.   
 
The interview process has begun and finalist candidates have been forwarded to my office for middle 
school math and science.  The Principals have been given the charge to have all positions brought to 
the board for a vote by the first board meeting in June if not sooner.  The initial interviews for 
Business Administrator were held on Wednesday April 3rd.  The board will be presented with 
candidates for the Business Administrator and Technology Director as soon as possible. 
 
Currently we have the following positions open: 
 
 Special Education Teacher    9 candidates 
 Middle School Mathematics    10 candidates 
 Middle School Science     8 candidates 
 Middle/High School Art     7 candidates 
 Middle/High School Physical Education/Health  10 candidates 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road 
Lyndeborough, NH  03082 

603-654-8088 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 
  
  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 High School English     9 candidates 
Elementary Teacher     31 candidates 
Food Service Director     6 candidates 

 Business Administrator     9 candidates 
Technology Director     Just posted 



 

 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BUSINESS OFFICE REPORT 

April 9, 2019 

 
 
Buddy has been focusing on the upcoming deadline for the Lead Water Testing of July 2019.  This 
pertains to the new regulation – SB247 Preventing Childhood Lead Poisoning from Paint and Water. 
He has been working closely with the NH Dept. of Environmental Services (NHDES).  The Lyndeborough 
Central School testing is complete and passes the parameters.  Buddy will be working to get samples for 
Florence Rideout Elementary this week.  Wilton-Lyndeborough Middle/High samples are scheduled to 
be done by mid-April.  It takes a couple of weeks after that to get the results from the analysts.  They 
then submit their findings to the NHDES.  We get copies of the report after that. 
 
The voted budget documents (MS-22) have been submitted to the Dept. of Education and the Dept. of 
Revenue (DRA) via the portal.  The Voted Appropriations for 19-20 were approved by the DRA on Friday, 
March 29th. 
 
Mary Anne and Kristina will be working on the open enrollment packets this year.  It is suggested that 
they go out by the end of this month.  This gives the employees a month to get their changes to the 
Business Office by June 1st.  All benefit vendors are expected to give their updates by the 15th of this 
month.  At this point in time, we know our dental insurance rates will remain the same. 
 
Mary Anne and Cindy, our District Treasurer, will be attending the annual NH Government Finance 
Officers conference.  It is anticipated that they will focus on new government accounting regulations, 
the economy, state aid projections, and the review of treasurer operations and regulations. 
 
Our next Facilities Subcommittee meeting is scheduled before this board meeting.  A Capital 
Improvement Plan update/administrative meeting is planned for 5:30 pm at WLC in the staff/teacher 
workroom near the media center. 
 
FYI: 
Capital Reserve Trust Account Balances as of February 28, 2019. 
 
Building/Equipment & Roadway Fund $109,910.37 
Educationally Disabled Children Fund $218,794.40 
Technology Advancement Fund  $  35,819.68 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

       192 Forest Road, 

  Lyndeborough, NH 03082   

                        

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 

 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 

  

  



Florence Rideout Elementary School 
18 Tremont Street  
Wilton, NH 03086 

Phone: 603-654-6714 
Fax: 603-654-3490 

 
 

     Website: 
www.sau63.org 

Lyndeborough Central School 
192 Forest Road 

Lyndeborough, NH 03082 
Phone: 603-654-9381 

Fax: 603-654-6884 
 

 

 
  

Principal’s Report 4/9/2019 
Lyndeborough Central School/Florence Rideout Elementary School 

 
 
Kindergarten registration for the 2019-20 school year is underway. The registration period began 
on March 20th.  As of April 1st, we have a total of 23 Kindergarten students registered for the 
2019-20 school year. 
 
April is Autism Awareness Month. Florence Rideout Elementary School and Lyndeborough 
Central school are participating in a fundraiser in an effort to support the research and families 
that have children with Autism. Join the R.I.S.E Program at FRES and LCS in showing your 
understanding, acceptance, and love of autism by buying a puzzle piece. All puzzle pieces will 
be displayed in Florence Rideout Elementary School lobby.  
 
During the weeks of April 9th through April 12th, 3rd, 4th and 5th students at Florence Rideout 
Elementary School will engage in English Language Arts portion of the new New Hampshire 
Statewide Assessment.  This assessment measures a student’s understanding of academic content 
and skills in Reading, Writing, Language conventions and Listening comprehension.  
The 5th grade students will continue with the Science portion on April 15th and 16th. The purpose 
of the New Hampshire State wide assessment is to determine if students are meeting the state’s 
expectations and will provide a better picture of where students are succeeding and where they 
need help. 
 
On Monday March 25th, I joined other members from our district UDL (Universal Design for 
Learning) team at the Grappone Conference in Concord, NH. Universal Design for Learning 
(UDL) is a framework to improve and optimize teaching and learning for all students based on 
scientific insights into how humans learn.  On April 12, Neil Albero from CAST visited 
Florence Rideout to observe instruction in 2nd grade teacher Heather Desmarais and 5th grade 
teacher Erin Tierney classrooms.  These teachers designed lessons that incorporated several UDL 
principles.  We are very excited to be part of this statewide initiative and continue to develop our 
understanding of how these principles can impact our instructional practices and ultimately 
student learning. 
 
 Math consultants Ann Mordecai and Lisa Sweet from Demonstrated Success will visit all 
classrooms on April 15 and 17th to observe teachers deliver lessons that focused on problem 
solving and the application of math skills and strategies.  Teachers have spent time during 
Professional Learning teams collaborating and developing lessons that focus on mathematical 



practices and problem solving practices. Feedback based on the lesson observations was 
delivered to grade level teams on Friday, April 19th.  
 
3rd, 4th and 5th grade chorus students will be performing the National Anthem at Delta Dental 
Stadium on April 6th for a New Hampshire Fisher Cats Game.  
 
Physical Education teacher, Mr. Fritz Shenk has planned his annual Jump Rope for Heart events 
at Florence Rideout Elementary School.  Throughout the month of April, students will be 
jumping rope to raise awareness for the American Heart Association 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

Timothy O’Connell 
 



WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 
MIDDLE SCHOOL / HIGH SCHOOL 

57 SCHOOL ROAD 
WILTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03086 

(603) 654-6123 
www.sau63.org/domain10 

 

 
       

 
Brian Bagley, Principal 
Sarah Edmunds, Assistant Principal 

 
Amanda J. Kovaliv, School Counseling Coordinator 

Shannon O’Donnell, Middle School Counselor 
 
 

WLC Principal Report April 9, 2019 
The sixth grade presented their India Fair to the WLC community on Friday, March 15. Student groups researched 
contributions of ancient India and displayed their work to staff, students, and parents, explaining various contributions 
such as Hinduism, the heliocentric system, the zero, and flush toilets! Our students did a fantastic job of explaining how 
their chosen contributions have contributed a wealth of knowledge and advancements beyond ancient India into today. 
Great job, sixth grade! 
 
In an effort to raise academic standards and expectations of our eighth grade students, we will be instituting 
mandatory summer school for students who do not meet expectations concerning academic achievement in all core 
subjects. The following criteria is to be used to determine participation in summer school:  

1. STAR 360 and New Hampshire State Assessment scores: students must score at least grade 6 level.   
2. Team recommendations.  

Summer school will be mandatory. If a student doesn’t attend there will be a retention hearing to determine placement for 
the 2019-2020 school year. Students with individual education plans that are designated to earn standards diplomas will 
need to meet all of these standards.  Accommodations will be made on all assessments as designated in the student 
individual education plan.  Summer school will start Monday, July 1st and last six full weeks. Once the data has been read 
and teachers have had the opportunity to properly evaluate all students a decision will then be made concerning who 
attends. Meetings will be scheduled for the families of students who could qualify for summer school.  
 
Middle School teachers are preparing to pilot quarter four challenge options for students in grades 6, 7, and 8. 
Challenge options are designed to prepare students who are advanced for their grade in a specific content area, enjoy 
learning challenges, and want to push themselves to acquire an even deeper understanding of course material. 
Additionally, challenge options are intended to foster a sense independence, self-motivation and responsibility in students 
with stronger reading, writing, and critical thinking skills (above and beyond what is normally expected). It would be 
recommended that any students interested in taking honors classes as a high school freshman attempt challenge options.  
All students with teacher approval are eligible to attempt any challenge assignment. It is recommended that any student 
who is missing work/failing not attempt the challenge assignments. 
 
Middle School Open House – The middle school will be hosting an open house on Thursday, May 28, 5:00-7:00.  
Projects from the start of the year will be on display for parents and the community. A challenge option presentation will 
also take place. More information will be forth coming.  
 
WLC students compete at the NH State Science Competition - NH State Science Competition was held on March 23, 
2019, Saturday at St. Anselm College. WLC was represented by two teams. Nine students participated on the High School 
team and ten students participated on the middle school team. This opportunity allowed students to explore various fields 
of science and engineering. Participation in the competition helped students gain in-depth scientific knowledge, 
collaboration and teamwork. Students showcased their passion for science by learning through research, applying 
scientific concepts by designing, building and testing their models by analyzing and applying given specifications. The 
sign ups began in the fall. The first step was choosing a category. There were two categories to choose from a study event 
and a build event. The team members met and prepared for their event throughout the academic year.  
 
Senior Project – Seniors met with Ms. Morshed, Mrs. White and their Senior Project mentor on the Research Check-
in.  As part of their Senior Project, seniors complete 20 hours of print research and 25 hours of experiential research. The 
print resources may include books, magazine and newspaper articles, trade manuals, or articles from databases from our 
library. The experiential research included preparing a sugar house, working with a veterinarian, researching recipes, 



studying and practicing Reiki, attending classes to be trained as a counselor to help victims of sexual and domestic abuse, 
and so much more.  Senior Projects were presented last week April 1-5.   
 
The WLC Drama Club performed Peter and the Starcatcher on March 28th and 29th.  This is the first time WLC 
has had a drama club since 2011 and we are all very excited to see a resurgence of student interest in this art form.  The 
students worked hard and did well.  We look forward to building the group in the years to come! 
 
Athletic Report 
Spring Snapshots 
Varsity Baseball 
Head Coach: Dave Finch 
Assistant Coaches: Tom Brennan and Brice Miller 
# of players: 14 
Record: 0-0 
First Home Game: 4/15/19 vs. Sunapee at 4pm 
 
Varsity Softball 
Head Coach: Denny Claire 
Assistant Coaches: Scott Dowling and Kelly LoVerme 
# of players: 12 
Record: 0-0 
First Home Game: 4/15/19 vs. Sunapee at 4pm 
 
Girls Varsity Tennis 
Head Coach: Fran Bujak 
# of players: 9 
Record: 0-0 
Next Home Match: 4/3/19 vs. Stevens at 4pm 
 
Varsity Track and Field 
Head Coach: Marc Belanger 
Assistant Coach: Michelle Boette 
# of participants: 17 
Next Meet: 4/9/19 at Moultonborough at 4pm 
 
Middle School Baseball 
Head Coach: Norm Hall 
# of players: 10 
Record: 0-0 
First Home Game: 4/11/19 vs. Nashua Catholic at 3:30pm 
 
Middle School Softball 
Head Coach: Amber Laforge 
# of players: 12 
First Home Game: 4/11/19 vs. Nashua Catholic at 3:30pm 
 
The new softball backstop is up and looks great. The plan is to get the softball scoreboard mounted in it's 
permanent location within the next 3 weeks. 
 
 
 
 

 



Monday, April 1 –  

Tuesday, April 2 –  

Wednesday, April 3 – GV Tennis vs. Stevens, 4:00 

Thursday, April 4 –  

Friday, April 5 – High School Student of the Month 

   Warrior Pride Day 

   GV Tennis @ Sanborn, 4:00 

Saturday, April 6 – 

Sunday, April 7 –  

Monday, April 8 – GV Softball/BV Baseball @ Hinsdale, 4:00 

   GV Tennis @ Conant, 4:00 

Tuesday, April 9 – Arena Scheduling 

   PSAT/SAT testing 

   Track @ Conant, 4:00 

   School Board Meeting, 6:30, Library 

Wednesday, April 10 – GV Softball/BV Baseball vs. PCA, 4:00 

   GV Tennis vs. Sanborn, 4:00 

Thursday, April 11 – MSG Softball/MSB Baseball vs. Nashua Catholic, 3:30 

Early College Planning, 6:00-7:00, School Counseling 

   College Overview, 7:00-8:00, School Counseling 

Friday, April 12 – BV Baseball vs. Concord Christian, 4:00 

   GV Tennis vs. Gilford, 4:00 

Saturday, April 13 – GV Softball @ Pittsfield, 11:00/1:00 

Sunday, April 14 –  

Monday, April 15 – GV Softball/BV Baseball vs. Sunapee, 4:00 

   GV Tennis @ Kearsarge, 4:00 

Coop Connection Meeting, 6:00, Library 



Tuesday, April 16 – Track @ Kearsarge, 4:00 

   MSG Softball/MSB Baseball vs. Londonderry, 3:30 

School Board meeting, 6:30, Library 

Wednesday, April 17 – GV Softball/BV Baseball @ Derryfield, 4:00 

   GV Tennis @ Monadnock, 4:00 

Thursday, April 18 – GV Tennis @ St. Thomas Aquinas, 4:00 

   MSG Softball/MSB Baseball vs. Timberlane, 3:30 

   Track @ Moultonborough, 4:00 

Friday, April 19 – GV Softball/BV Baseball vs. Nute, 4:00 

Saturday, April 20 –  

Sunday, April 21 –  

Monday, April 22 – No School 

Tuesday, April 23 – No School 

   GV Softball/BV Baseball vs. Hinsdale, 4:00 

Wednesday, April 24 – No School 

Thursday, April 25 – No School 

Friday, April 26 – No School 

Saturday, April 27 – 

Sunday, April 28 – 

Monday, April 29 – GV Softball/BV Baseball @ Farmington, 4:30 

   Track @ Campbell, 4:00 

Tuesday, April 30 – MSG Softball vs. Candia, 3:30 

   MSB Baseball vs. Epping, 4:00 

 

 



 

The WLC Reporter  

 
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative Middle/High School April  2019 

 

WLC Middle School Celebrates 
 Pi Day 

By Amanda Miller
 

 
On Thursday March 14, The WLC Middle       
School celebrated Pi Day in their core       
classes. Language Arts classes read the      
book, Sir Cumference and the Dragon of Pi.        
Students learned about geometrical terms,     
specifically circles, through characters like:     
Sir Cumference, Lady Di of Ameter and       
their son Radius. They also discussed the       
use of puns and literary elements. Students       
created many art projects, including Pi cities       
to help illustrate the digits of Pi, using 3         
colors to take 14 minutes to design 15        
boxes, or creating rainbow Pi images by       
solving problems using the order of      
operations. Students studied the history of      
Pi and learned some interesting trivia about       
Pi and Pi Day, like the fact that Albert         
Einstein was born on March 14th. Many       
watched a demonstration in which a circular       
brownie was transformed into a rectangle to       
help better understand the formulas used      
with circles, cones, cylinders, and spheres      
and then enjoyed the brownies as a reward        
for their hard work. A wonderful time was        
had by all as each subject area took time to          
celebrate Pi. 

 
 

 

 

 

Brooklyn Furze Competes in  
State Geo Bee 

Brooklyn Furze participated in the State      
Geography Bee on March 29. Although      
she didn’t make it to the top ten, she         
answered six of her eight questions      
correctly, which is a fantastic     
accomplishment! Congrats Brooklyn! We    
are proud of you!  

Investigating Climate in 

Honors Integrated Science 

By Stephanie Erickson 

 

 

Honors Integrated Science students    

recently began investigating the    

question "How do we know about      

Earth’s climate before the instrumental     

record?" Student models began with the      

evolution of the atmosphere and an      

understanding of how electromagnetic    

waves interact within our atmosphere     

to warm and cool the planet.      

Investigations progressed into   

analyzing how ice cores provide     

evidence of past climate. Students used      

their desks as a dry erase board to keep         

track of observations and create     

detailed diagrams of their ice cores.      

After completing a peer review of their       

classmate's models, students grouped    

themselves into two groups    

representing the two different ice core      

drill locations and collaborated to     

create a consensus model of events      

occurring in the atmosphere when the      

ice core layers were deposited.     

Subsequent classes will focus on     

analyzing and interpreting actual ice     

core data from the Vostok Ice Core in        

Antarctica which documents 800,000    

years of Earth's history.  

 

 



 
Hard Work Pays Off 

By the WLC Yearbook Staff

The school yearbook is finally on its way        
after months of combined effort and hard       
work! Over the last seven months, students       
have been learning the basics of publishing,       
photography, design, and financial planning.     
A vast majority of the book’s design is        
based on student preference, as it begins as        
a blank canvas. Initially, the staff decides       
which sections of previous yearbooks that      
they would like to keep, discard, or make        
their own. It is then the students’       
responsibility to visit classrooms, attend     
sporting events and assemblies, and     
organize time with faculty members to      
collect and catalogue photographs, artifacts,     
and information. 
Staff members take these items and design       
page layouts to accommodate them. Each      
student is assigned a set of pages within the         
yearbook, giving them significant creative     
freedom. The staff is trained on an internet        
browser-based program, Yearbook Avenue,    
through our partner company, Jostens.     
While students work on the book design,       
they are also responsible for finding      
sponsors for the yearbook. Students must      
perform the legwork by visiting businesses      
and individuals to help fund the project.       
Publishing a yearbook can be challenging,      
time consuming, daunting, but ultimately it      
is a rewarding experience for most students       
to see their work come to fruition. The 2019         
yearbook will be available mid-May     
through the end of the school year for $50. 

An example photo from the 2018-2019 
yearbook.  Do you recognize this beloved 
WLC teacher?  

WLC students compete at the NH 
State Science Competition 

By Raj Kalsi and Cathy Blais 
 

The NH State Science Competition was      
held on Saturday, March 23, 2019 at St.        
Anselm College. WLC was represented by      
two teams. Nine students participated on      
the High School team and ten students       
participated on the middle school team.      
This opportunity allowed students to     
explore various fields of science and      
engineering. Participation in the    
competition helped students gain in-depth     
scientific knowledge, collaboration and    
teamwork. Students showcased their    
passion for science by learning through      
research, applying scientific concepts by     
designing, building and testing their models      
by analyzing and applying given     
specifications. The sign-ups began in the      
fall. The first step was choosing a category        
. There were two categories to choose from        
– a study event and a build event. 
The team members met and prepared for       
their event throughout the academic year.      
They made a time commitment to explore       
their field of interest. Elizabeth Jacob, a       
freshmen, built six models of the      
Boomilever. Her final model could     
withstand 33 pounds of load. Sophomores      
Matt Wolseley and Paul Blarigan,     
competed in Wright Stuff , building a       
plane. Mikayla Broderick and Sophia     
Sistachs took the challenge of Disease      
Detectives and Sam Yurcak and Sam      
Townsend did Write it, Do it. Juniors       
Madeline Smith and Kaitlin LoVerme,     
participated in Anatomy & Physiology,     
Participants also watched other school     
teams as they showcased their models.      
They received a swag bag and lunch that        
was provided by the organizers. 
This competition provided a valuable     
experience to the participants building upon      
not just their study skills but also on        
figuring out the best ways to do well in         
their event through building partnership,     
collaboration and teamwork. The team     
T-Shirt was also designed by the team       
members. All students were proud to      
represent their school and will receive a       
certificate of participation. 

 

Middle school students Zach Levesque, Colby 

 

WLC High School- Division C team      
members: Back row L-R Samantha Yurcak,      
Mikayla Broderick, Sophia Sistachs, Samuel     
Townsend, Elizabeth Jacob Front Row L-R      
Paul VanBlarigan, Kaitlin LoVerme,    
Madeline Smith, missing Matthew Wolseley 

 
The WLC Drama Club Performs Peter 

and the Starcatcher 

 
The WLC Drama Club performed Peter and       
the Starcatcher on March 28th and 29th.       
This is the first time WLC has had a drama          
club since 2011 and we are all very excited         
to see a resurgence of student interest in        
this art form. The students worked hard       
and did well. We look forward to building        
the group in the years to come! 

 

 

Dr. Annamarie Pennucci of the Guild of       
New Hampshire Woodworkers and Justin     
Kane, WLC Tech Ed instructor, pose in       
front of a Rikon variable-speed lathe. A       
grant application from Mr. Kane has been       
answered with a $4,000 in-kind donation      
by the Guild of four Rikon 70-220VSR       
1hp lathes, four PSI 6-piece lathe tool       
sets, a sharpening system and associated      
hardware. Dr. Pennucci, the Guild, and      
the Granite State Woodturners are also      
providing networking, training, and    
technical support as we bring WLC Tech       
Ed’s lathe turning program back online.      
WLC is very grateful for their support! 



 

 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Curriculum Report:  April 9, 2019 

 

Professional Learning 

We are in the process of planning for professional learning opportunities during the summer break.  Some 

of these will occur onsite in June and August while others will occur at various sites determined by sponsors.  

Teachers are considering science, math, responsive classroom, and other topics to pursue that are aligned 

with our district priorities. 

The middle/high school science teachers met with our science consultant in March to work on course units 

aligned with the science standards.  They will meet again in April.  The standards require students to 

investigate and reason logically in order to better understand the science concepts.  The teachers also 

participated in a webinar with Project Lead the Way during a science department meeting to explore 

additional resources. 

I have regular meetings with the individual teachers, building administrators, and WLC department heads 

about professional learning opportunities, curriculum, and instruction. 

Staff from FRES and WLC will be attending a behavioral health/social-emotional learning conference in 

early April.  This group will provide input into the creation of a scope and sequence for K-12 health. 

I continue to work on grants that provide supplemental funding for the district.  These funds may not 

supplant district responsibilities for funding.  At this time, there are 3 competitive grants that may fund a 

summer academy for FRES, math specific professional learning, and another for additional professional 

learning. 

Curriculum 

The FRES math committee members are not only learning about various math programs, we are assessing 

math concepts and strategies in order to consider them for our math curriculum.  This effort dovetails with 

our work on math strategies and ways to frequently determine student understanding with our math 

consultant.  The math consultant will be providing grade-level feedback to teams during April. 

Assessment 

Plans are underway for our spring standardized assessments.  State testing will occur in April – May.  

Grades 3 -8 will test for math and reading; the SAT is the state test for grade 11 on April 9; and grades 5, 

8, and 11 will take the state science test.  Also, grades 9 and 10 will take the PSAT on April 9.  Grades 3-8 

will complete the end of year STAR 360 assessments for math and reading.  Each school has created 

scheduling to space out the test components so as to avoid overly taxing the students and to complete 

instruction for that time of year. 

Attached are the STAR score results for our March quarterly period.  The grade equivalent target is the 

grade level plus .7 for this time of the school year. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Julie Heon, Curriculum Coordinator 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District-SAU #63 

District Curriculum Coordinator 

Julie S. Heon, Ed. D. 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 

603-732-9273 

 



Grade test time # students

Grade 

Equivalent Percentile * Grade test time # students

Grade 

Equivalent  Percentile *

K Early Literacy test
(age 

equivalent)

Jan. 52 5.7 NA

March 52 6.2 69

1 Nov 33 1.3 56 1 Nov 20 1.3 31

Jan 33 1.7 63 Jan 29 1.6 52

March 34 2.0 67 March 33 1.9 59

2 Sep 42 2.1 58 2 Sep 42 2.0 34

Nov 43 2.4 53 Nov 42 2.3 38

Jan 42 2.7 59 Jan 42 2.6 46

March 42 2.9 59 March 42 2.9 52

3 Sep 39 3.7 77 3 Sep 39 3.7 60

Nov 40 3.9 78 Nov 40 3.9 64year change year change

Jan 39 4.2 78 Jan 39 4.4 71

March 39 4.2 73 March 39 4.4 66

4 Sep 42 4.1 57 4 Sep 42 3.8 37

Nov 43 4.5 64 Nov 43 4.3 45

Jan 43 4.5 60 Jan 43 4.5 48

March 41 4.9 63 March 42 4.7 49

5 Sep 38 5.3 62 5 Sep 39 5.1 44

Nov 39 5.7 66 Nov 39 5.4 48

Jan 38 5.8 65 Jan 38 5.5 49

March 37 6.3 69 March 37 6.0 55

READINGMATH

                           STAR  Assessment Data            4/1/2019

* Percentile:  as compared to students nationally.







   
BEA - REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS 
 
Category R 
 

The Board should meet in accordance with a calendar created annually at the first meeting of the 
new board in March. The board will comply with the requirements of Ed. 303.01f in meeting at 
least once every two months. 

Notice of all board meetings will be posted in two appropriate places or printed in the local 
newspaper at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting.  The Superintendent is authorized 
to post notice of the meeting on the District website. 

All regular meetings shall be open to the public.  The Board will establish the agenda of each 
meeting.  The Board reserves the right to amend the agenda during the meeting, should a 
majority of the board vote to do so.  Additionally, the Board may or may not allow public 
comments at the meeting.  Should the Board offer time for public comments, such comments 
may be restricted to agenda items only, and the Board may decline members of the public the 
opportunity to speak on items not on the agenda.  Further clarification of public comments 
policies are located in Policies BEDH, KE, and KEB. 

All changes of regular meetings from normal dates shall be advertised at least 24 hours prior to 
the date of the meeting.  Special meetings shall be held at the call of the Chairperson. 

A majority of the Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board shall constitute a quorum.  
Provisions for meeting a quorum are established in Board Policy BEDC. 

The School Board recognizes that the consistent attendance of Board Members at Board 
Meetings is essential for the efficient, effective operation of the Board's duties as well as 
fulfilling our individual obligations as elected officials.  

The Chair and Vice Chair will formally question any Board member who misses three 
consecutive meetings, or more than 30% of scheduled meetings, for reasons of absences.  The 
Board may then take such action that is appropriate. 

 

Legal References: 
RSA 91-A, Access to Public Records and Meetings 
N.H. Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed. 303.01(f), Substantive Duties of School 
Boards 
 
Revised:  October 2008 
Revised:    July 1998, November 1999, February 2004, May 2006, May 2007 

 
Original Date of Adoption: October 12, 2010 
Revised Adoption:  
 
First Reading: September 28, 2011 
Second Reading: September 28, 2011 
Final Adoption: September 28, 2011 
Reviewed: October 9, 2018, November 13, 2018 
Revised: November 13, 2018 



BEDB - AGENDA PREPARATION AND DISSEMINATION 
 

 

See Also BEDA, BEDH 

The Superintendent shall prepare all agendas for meetings of the Wilton-Lyndeborough 

Cooperative School Board. In doing so, the Superintendent shall consult with the Board. 

Items to be placed on the agenda should be received by the Superintendent at least seven days 

prior to the meeting.  Every Board member has the right to place items on the agenda. Matters 

not included in the agenda may be presented during the meeting provided the Board agrees to 

discuss the matter.  The Board may choose not to deal with every agenda item. 

Consistent with RSA 91-A:3 and the laws pertaining to student and family privacy rights, the 

Board will not place any matter on the public meeting agenda that is to be properly discussed in a 

non-public session.  This shall not preclude the Board from giving notice of its intent to hold or 

enter into a non-public session and the statutory reason for doing such. 

Any Board member, staff member, student, or citizen of the District may suggest items of 

business. The inclusion of items suggested by staff members, students, or citizens shall be at the 

discretion of the Board Chairperson.  

The Board shall follow the order of business set up by the agenda unless the order is altered by a 

majority vote of the members present. Items of business not on the agenda may be discussed and 

acted upon if a majority of the Board agrees to consider them. The Board, however, may not 

revise Board policies, or adopt new ones, unless such action has been scheduled, or unless there 

is an emergency. 

The agenda and supporting materials should be distributed to Board members at least seven days 

prior to the Board meeting.  Board Members shall be expected to read the information provided 

them and to contact the Superintendent to request additional information that may be deemed 

necessary to assist them in their decision-making responsibilities.  

When the final agenda has been established, it will be made available to the public, upon request.  

Members of the public who wish to speak at Board meetings regarding an agenda item are 

encouraged to contact the Superintendent prior to the Board meeting.  Additionally, the Board 

reserves the right to limit public discussion at Board meetings to agenda items only. 

 

First Reading: September 14, 2010 

Second Reading: October 12, 2010 

Final Adoption: October 12, 2010 

 

 

 
 



BEDH - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT BOARD MEETINGS 
 

See Also KE, KEB 

The primary purpose of Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board meetings is to conduct 

the business of the Board as it relates to school policies, programs and operations.  The Board 

encourages residents to attend Board meetings so that they may become acquainted with the 

operation and programs of the schools.  All official meetings of the Board shall be open to the 

press and public.  However, the Board reserves the right to meet and to adjourn or recess a 

meeting at any time.  The Board also reserves the right to enter non-public session at any time, in 

accordance with the provisions RSA 91-A:3. 

In order to assure that persons who wish to appear before the Board may be heard and, at the 

same time, it may conduct its meetings properly and efficiently, the Board adopts as policy the 

following procedures and rules pertaining to public participation at Board meetings: 

1.  The first 15 minutes will be set aside for citizens to address the Board.  This period 

may be extended by a majority vote of the Board.  Speakers will be allotted three 

minutes per person. 

2.  Members of the public may offer comments on agenda items only.  The Board will 

not entertain comments on items that do not appear on the agenda.  Requests to 

address the Board on matters not on the agenda must be presented to the 

Superintendent and must set forth the specifics of the subject to be addressed.  When 

appropriate, the Board may place such requests on the agenda. 

3.  Consistent with RSA 91-A:3, Policy BEDB, and the laws pertaining to student and 

family privacy rights, the Board will not place any matter on the public agenda that is 

to be properly discussed in a non-public session.  Complaints regarding individual 

employees, personnel or students will be directed to the Superintendent in accord 

with Policies KE and KEB. 

4.  All speakers are to conduct themselves in a civil manner.  Obscene, libelous, 

defamatory or violent statements will be considered out of order and will not be 

tolerated.  The Board Chair may terminate the speaker's privilege of address if the 

speaker does not follow this rule of order. 

Persons appearing before the Board are reminded that members of the Board are without 

authority to act independently as individuals in official matters.  Thus, questions may be directed 

to individual Board members, but answers must be deferred pending consideration by the full 

Board. 

Legal Reference: 

RSA 91-A:2, Meetings Open to Public 

RSA 91-A:3, Non-Public Sessions 

 

First Reading: September 14, 2010 

Second Reading: October 12, 2010 

Final Adoption: October 12, 2010 



KE - PUBLIC COMPLAINTS 
 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board believes that complaints and grievances 

are best handled and resolved by the parties directly concerned.  Therefore, the proper 

channeling of complaints involving instruction, discipline or learning materials will be as 

follows: 

1.  Teacher 

2.  Principal 

3.  Superintendent 

4.  Board of Education 

Any complaint presented to the Board about school personnel shall be referred back through 

proper administrative channels.  The Board will not hear complaints from individuals until such 

complaints have first been brought forth through the appropriate and applicable administrative 

procedures.  Exceptions to this provision are for complaints that relate solely to Board actions or 

Board operations. 

In the event a complaint is made directly to an individual Board member, the procedure outlined 

below shall be followed: 

1.  The Board member shall refer the person making the complaint to the Superintendent 

or for investigation.  The Superintendent may delegate the investigation to the Principal. 

2.  If the member of the public will not personally present the complaint to the 

Superintendent or Principal, the Board member shall then ask that the complaint be 

written and signed.  The Board member will then refer the complaint to the 

Superintendent for investigation. 

3.  If the person making a complaint feels that a satisfactory reply has not been received 

from the Superintendent may request that the complaint be heard by the Board.  The 

Board will hear and act upon the complaint only by majority vote.  If the Board does 

hear and act upon the complaint, all Board decisions shall be final. 

 

First Reading: September 14, 2010 

Second Reading: October 12, 2010 

Final Adoption: October 12, 2010 
 



KEB - PUBLIC COMPLAINTS ABOUT SCHOOL PERSONNEL, 

EMPLOYEES, STUDENTS OR ADMINISTRATION 
 

Any complaint presented to the Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board about school 

personnel, employees, students or administration, will be referred back to the Superintendent.  

The Board will not hear or review complaints until such complaints have first been brought forth 

through the appropriate and applicable administrative procedures and the Superintendent or 

his/her designee has had a reasonable opportunity to seek to resolve the complaint. 

The Board may decline to hear any complaint, which will interfere with its ability to serve as an 

impartial trier of fact in any related student or personnel matter.  This complaint procedure shall 

not supersede or modify any right held by employees of the Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative 

School District under federal law, state law, contract, or collective bargaining agreement. 

To the extent it is deemed appropriate by the Superintendent, the individual who is the subject of 

the complaint may be advised of the nature of the complaint and may be given an opportunity for 

explanation, comment, and presentation of the facts.  The Superintendent shall seek to resolve 

the matter and report to the Board. 

Complaints about the Superintendent may be made directly to the Board through the Clerk, but 

only after reasonable efforts have been made by the complaining party to resolve their complaint 

directly with the Superintendent.  The Board may, to the extent it is appropriate, advise the 

Superintendent of the nature of the complaint and may give the Superintendent an opportunity 

for explanation, comment, and presentation of facts. 

In the event a complaint is made directly to an individual Board member, the procedure outlined 

below shall be followed: 

1.  The Board member shall refer the person making the complaint to the Superintendent 

or for investigation.  The Superintendent may delegate the investigation to a Principal or 

other administrator. 

2.  If the member of the public will not personally present the complaint to the 

Superintendent or Principal, the Board member shall then ask that the complaint be 

written and signed.  The Board member will then refer the complaint to the 

Superintendent for investigation. 

3.  If the person making a complaint believes that a satisfactory reply has not been 

received from the Superintendent, he or she may request that the Board hear the 

complaint.  The Board will hear and act upon the complaint only by majority vote.  The 

Board may decline to act on any complaint which, in its sole judgment, would interfere 

with the Superintendent's ability to properly administer the district.  If the Board does 

hear and act upon the complaint, all Board decisions shall be final. 

4.  If the Board decides, in accord with Paragraph Three, to hear and act upon a 

complaint that pertains to personnel, employee, student or administrative matters, it shall 

determine whether the complaint shall be heard in public or non-public session in accord 

with RSA 91-A:3 and the laws pertaining to student and family privacy rights.  The 

Board shall also determine whether it is appropriate to inform the individual who is the 



subject of the complaint of the meeting and to provide said individual with further 

opportunity for explanation, comment, and presentation of the facts to the Board. 

5.  If the Superintendent is the subject of the complaint, the Board shall determine 

whether the complaint should be heard in public or non-public session in accord with 

RSA 91-A:3.  The Board may, to the extent it is appropriate, advise the Superintendent 

of the nature of the complaint and may give the Superintendent an opportunity for 

explanation, comment, and presentation of the facts. 

 

First Reading: September 14, 2010 

Second Reading: October 12, 2010 

Final Adoption: October 12, 2010 
 



 

   

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 2 

Tuesday, March 19, 2019 3 

Lyndeborough Central School-Multipurpose Room 4 

    6:30 p.m. 5 
 6 
Present: Matt Ballou, Alex LoVerme, Miriam Lemire, Joyce Fisk, Carol LeBlanc, Jonathan Vanderhoof, Mark 7 
Legere, Tiffany Cloutier-Cabral and John Clark   8 
 9 
Superintendent Bryan Lane, Principal Brian Bagley, Director of Student Support Services Betty Moore, and Clerk 10 
Kristina Fowler 11 
 12 

I. OATH OF OFFICE-Mary Jane Ryan, School District Clerk 13 
The following members were sworn in by Ms. Ryan; School Board: Ms. Cloutier-Cabral, Mr. Clark and Mr. Legere 14 
and Budget Committee: Mr. Adam Lavallee and Mr. Jeffrey Jones. 15 
 16 

II. CALL TO ORDER-Bryan K. Lane, Superintendent of Schools 17 
Superintendent Lane called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 18 
 19 

III. ELECTIONS/APPOINTMENTS 20 
a. Elections 21 

i. School Board Chairman 22 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to nominate Mr. Ballou as School Board 23 
Chairman. 24 
Voting: eight ayes; one abstention from Mr. Ballou, motion carried. 25 
 26 
The meeting was turned over to Chairman Ballou. 27 
 28 

ii. School Board Vice Chairman 29 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Legere and SECONDED by Mr. Vanderhoof to nominate Mr. LoVerme as School 30 
Board Vice Chairman. * 31 
 32 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. Fisk to nominate Ms. LeBlanc as School Board Vice 33 
Chairman. 34 
 35 
*Voting: five ayes, two nays from Ms. Fisk and Ms. Lemire, two abstentions from Mr. Vanderhoof and Chairman. 36 
Ballou, motion carried. 37 
 38 

b. Appointments 39 
i. Treasurer 40 

ii. School District Clerk 41 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Fisk and SECONDED by Mr. LoVerme to appoint Ms. Cindy Marzella as School 42 
District Treasurer and Ms. Mary Jane Ryan as School District Clerk. 43 
Voting: all ayes; motion carried unanimously. 44 
 45 

iii. Committees 46 
Chairman Ballou reminded members per the policy, committee selection is considered a clean slate. The following 47 
committees are considered standing committees: policy, strategic planning, facilities and negotiations. 48 
 49 
The following members volunteered for the Strategic Planning Committee: Ms. LeBlanc, Ms. Cloutier-Cabral, and 50 
Ms. Lemire. 51 
 52 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to nominate Mr. Vanderhoof as budget 53 
committee liaison. 54 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 55 
 56 



 

   

The group was reminded that the budget committee liaison is a voting position. 57 
 58 
The following members volunteered for the Negotiations Committee: Ms. Lemire, Mr. Vanderhoof and Mr. 59 
LoVerme. 60 
  61 
The following members volunteered for the Policy Committee: Mr. Legere, Ms. LeBlanc and Chairman Ballou. 62 
 63 
The following members volunteered for the Facilities Committee: Mr. Clark, Ms. Fisk, Mr. Legere and Ms. 64 
LeBlanc. 65 
 66 
Mr. Legere wishes to step off from the Joint Loss Management Committee due to time of the day the meetings are 67 
held. It was noted, this is not a standing committee and can be discussed at another time.  68 
 69 
Chairman Ballou and Ms. LeBlanc will continue to sign the manifest. 70 
 71 

IV. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 72 
Superintendent informed members a letter was received from the WLCTA and will be discussed in non-public as 73 
part of negotiations. 74 
  75 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 76 
Chairman Ballou informed the public that comments should be kept brief, 2-3 minutes; policy indicates 3 minutes 77 
per speaker.  78 
 79 
Mr. LoVerme requested to discuss a summer school matter. This will be addressed at the next meeting. 80 
 81 
Ms. Becky Sours, Wilton, questioned if the problem regarding arbitration mentioned in the Superintendent’s Report 82 
would be discussed.  Superintendent responded that it is part of negotiations and will be discussed in non-public. She 83 
also questioned the replacement of the 3rd grade teacher as she thought this position was not being replaced and 84 
instead some moving around would occur.  Superintendent responded a teacher is retiring and will be replaced with 85 
an elementary teacher as required to be in compliance with Board policy. Teachers can change a grade level and 86 
would take priority before hiring; this would go through administration. Ms. Sours noted resignation letters used to 87 
be published and requested to know why the food service director resigned. Chairman Ballou responded personnel 88 
matters are discussed during non-public. Mr. Vanderhoof added previously, we were not following Board policy and 89 
have been recently informed of this.     90 
 91 
Mr. Matthew Simard, Lyndeborough, spoke regarding a motion he brought up at district meeting to put the $81,000 92 
that was added to the budget in a reserve fund. He read his motion from his attorney. Superintendent noted this needs 93 
to be an agenda item in advance; a person from the public cannot make a motion. Mr. Simard responded “you asked 94 
me to bring it here and I did.”  Superintendent responded it would need to be part of the next agenda.  95 
 96 
Ms. Lisa Post and Ms. Pam Altner, both of Lyndeborough, expressed support for Mr. Simard’s request.  97 
 98 
Ms. Jessie Salisbury, Lyndeborough commended the music teacher for arranging the production of the  99 
‘artist in residence” at FRES and the PTO for sponsoring these. Ms. Susan Ciatto (PTO representative) clarified the 100 
PTO only partly funds this and expressed there are many involved to make this event successful.  101 
 102 
Mr. Matt Mannarino, Wilton, congratulated the new school board and budget committee members and noted in his 103 
opinion the election results are an indication of the state of the district and shows support for Principal Tim 104 
O’Connell and hopes the members hear the message of the voters.  He spoke of a statement he made at district 105 
meeting to make the superintendent position part-time. He retracts this and notes the district needs a full-time 106 
Superintendent and voices concern with it being Mr. Lane. He urged the Board to ask for his resignation and absent 107 
of that encourages the Board to review all of his decisions and to make that process as transparent as possible. A 108 
copy of his full statements are attached.  109 
  110 
Ms. Heather Gibson, Lyndeborough, noted a letter that was received home from WLC regarding summer school.  111 
 112 



 

   

Ms. Kelly Gibson spoke regarding Destination Imagination (DI). FRES had 3 teams attend that did extremely well. 113 
The youngest group, the Rising Stars did a marshmallow castle and rainbow lava. Ms. Sours team placed 1st place 114 
and will go to state and another group placed 2nd. She requests the School Board recognize them similar to Student of 115 
the Month and for the students to show what they worked on. She notes DI dissolves in the MS and HS and this 116 
would help show our district in a more positive way. Chairman Ballou noted for full disclosure his granddaughter is 117 
on the noncompetitive team.  118 
 119 
Mr. Dennis Golding, Wilton, questioned if the Industrial Arts program was going away next year due to getting a 120 
bunch of 3D printers; this was mentioned to a student by an adult at school. Chairman Ballou responded that had not 121 
been discussed. Superintendent added conversations were had with the teacher regarding the long-term future of the 122 
program and today they discussed scheduling and it is fully enrolled; the information the student received is not 123 
accurate.  In looking at professional development (PD) and technology, woodworking won’t disappear but would 124 
diminish; it is student enrollment driven.  125 
 126 
Ms. Susan Ciatto, Wilton spoke regarding the elevator at FRES having issues and has been told not to use it as it gets 127 
stuck. She heard a student was stuck in the elevator today.  Superintendent responded this will be part of his Board 128 
Report.  He was informed at 3pm today and everything is fine.  129 
 130 
Ms. Olivia Binstead, Lyndeborough, spoke that she works at FRES and the inspection date is February 19, 2019; it is 131 
not up to date for inspection. 132 
 133 
Mr. Adam Lavallee, Lyndeborough spoke that this (elevator matter) is not a small thing to be overlooked.  134 
 135 

VI. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 136 
a. Reports 137 

i. Superintendent’s Report 138 
Superintendent reported looking at the results of the town meeting we will need to come up with $82,289 in 139 
reductions from the SAU presented budget. The MS-22 needs to be signed and sent to the DOE. Nothing is written in 140 
stone and transfers can be done. He spoke of the current budget being strained now although not frozen; he has gone 141 
through it account by account and is releasing funds as appropriate. “As we move toward spring, the encumbrances 142 
will become more clear such as propane and we may have encumbered more than we need”.  His goal is to have a 143 
1%-1.5% fund balance.  All the purchase orders are approved through the SAU. He noted the WLCTA did have an 144 
arbitration piece which will be discussed in non-public. He reported multiple applicants for multiple open positions. 145 
The MS counselor position is not vacant as the counselor intends to return. He formed a committee to find a 146 
replacement for the position of the SPED Director. The goal is to have all positions filled as early as possible. He 147 
spoke regarding some retirements may be possible and per the CBA teachers have the option to not make it formal 148 
until after April 1 therefor it is not appropriate to announce any at this time. He confirmed the tentative number of 149 
retirements is 4.   150 
 151 
A question was raised how much arbitration costs the district. Superintendent responded it depends on the arbitrator 152 
and legal fees, there is a formal meeting; some may put forward a draft and the arbitrator will determine what is 153 
appropriate and what is not. It depends on the number of hours. He confirmed our attorney fees are $300 per hour 154 
and we have to pay for mileage. He does not have a specific number. 155 
 156 
A question was raised if the $81,000 is placed in a holding account does it impact what has to be sent to the state. 157 
Superintendent responded it does not affect this and the Board could choose to do this with any account. 158 
 159 
Superintendent spoke regarding the elevator at FRES and confirmed he received a report at about 2:50pm-3pm today 160 
that a student was in the elevator and unable to get out; the student hit the button and the police came. He confirmed 161 
the student went home on the regular scheduled bus and a staff person went to the student’s home to check in. 162 
Regarding the lack of inspection, this will be dealt with in the morning.  He was not aware of the malfunction or 163 
dysfunction of the elevator.  If it does not have a valid inspection, it should not be used.  Ms. Olivia Binstead spoke 164 
to say that technically you are not supposed to use it but she doesn’t have a choice as she has a student who needs to 165 
access it.   166 

ii. Director of Student Support Services Report 167 



 

   

Ms. Moore reported her last report was regarding LCS and this one is about FRES and the methodologies and 168 
programs for students who require special education. She gave a shout-out to all the staff who implement the 169 
programs and do a wonderful job. Her next report will be regarding WLC. 170 

iii. Director of Technology’s Report 171 
Superintendent provided an overview of Mr. Verratti’s report in his absence. Over break the internet was down for 172 
about 45 minutes but didn’t affect anyone. He spoke of discussing purchasing pieces including a machine that can 173 
cut wood based off of 3d drawing. “Parents are looking for advances in these areas and the science piece would hook 174 
into this”.  He thanked Mr. Schneider for his help setting up for district meeting.  175 

b. Letters/Information 176 
i. Anti-Vaping Detectors 177 

Principal Bagley spoke regarding previously coming to the Board requesting to purchase 8 anti-vaping devices and 178 
now has different feelings on the situation and would like to put the request on hold.  The students had a presentation 179 
at WLC regarding the dangers of vaping.  Education was provided to the students to not use these devices. He feels 180 
the students listened and walked away learning something.  He believes the devices will probably help in the 181 
bathrooms but not elsewhere; vaping is happening in the hallways and bathrooms. There is no smoke, it’s a vapor 182 
and students “zero out” into their forearm (blow the vapor into their forearm).  Cost is a factor and devices are only 183 
available from one company that he is aware of. Vaping is also a problem in the MS.  He adds it would be nice to 184 
have a RSO (Resource Officer) to help out.  He provided a document with answers to the questions the Board 185 
previously had, a pre-installation checklist and the quote. A new version of the device should be available in 186 
November and perhaps would be cheaper or more effective. The current cost is approximately $8,000.  The 187 
presentation given to students was from NH-Breathe which is state run group going to all schools. It’s free and if 188 
asked they would come back. Principal Bagley confirmed Mr. Verratti believes the vapor would still be detected 189 
even if students “zero out” because of the change in the air. Superintendent confirms there are no longer grant funds 190 
for an RSO and spoke regarding having an RSO in his building when he was Principal. The RSO in some 191 
communities works for the police department not the district due to the volume of time they spend at the school. He 192 
does not believe this district has that type of volume to make it cost effective as it would most likely come from our 193 
budget. Their pay scale is based on the state police pay scale and costs between $30,000-$40,000 with benefits that 194 
the police department has not the school district benefits (cost unknown). Chairman Ballou noted it would most 195 
likely be discussed in the future. 196 
 197 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 198 
There was no consent agenda to report. 199 

 200 
VIII. FOOD SERVICE 201 

Superintendent reports that Mr. LoVerme has provided some information regarding his concern around the quality, 202 
consistency, and presentation of the food.  Mr. LoVerme spoke in regard to this and had photos to show examples of 203 
the hot lunches. He voiced concern that a committee was started to look at the situation and “nothing was done”.  He 204 
voiced concern with quality and presentation of food; Italian Ice was given to students beyond its date and was being 205 
sold a week prior, milk expired by one or two days and at room temperature. He voiced concern regarding the 206 
consistency of the food for example the same student receiving one piece of pizza is burnt and the other is not. He 207 
voices frustration as a school board member and parent. He questions what parents are paying $4 a plate for. He 208 
requests immediate fix of these issues. He confirms not hearing similar reports coming from FRES, only WLC (LCS 209 
has the same food as FRES). He has asked for financial data going back 5 years. Members agree the issue of food 210 
service has been brought up at various times for some time. Chairman Ballou recommends a committee be formed to 211 
specifically look at food service. It is noted the Strategic Planning Committee started to look at this and the option of 212 
privatizing the program. Mr. Vanderhoof added, the committee did discuss it quite a bit last year and it should be 213 
considered that privatizing didn’t seem to solve anything, there are not any promises bringing in an outside vendor. 214 
Some schools had success and some things got better and some stayed the same. He agrees it is probably best to have 215 
a separate committee formed.  A suggestion was made to look at what FRES is doing and why there are differences. 216 
Ms. LeBlanc added that the Strategic Planning Committee didn’t focus on the quality of food, more of the financial 217 
piece and agrees a separate committee is best.  Chairman Ballou questioned if the Board would entertain having it on 218 
the agenda to form a committee; no objection heard. This will be on the next agenda. 219 
 220 
Chairman Ballou informed members as a point of clarification that the Chairman is technically allowed to vote and 221 
he will vote. He offered to vote and comment only after the other members as to not influence any votes.  Mr. 222 
Vanderhoof voiced he didn’t feel this was necessary and should vote with everyone. A question was raised if hand 223 



 

   

votes should be used. It was noted however the votes are done, it needs to be consistent. The consensus is voice votes 224 
and the Chairman will vote with everyone. 225 
 226 

IX. ACTION ITEMS 227 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 228 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to approve the minutes of March 5, 2019 229 
as amended. 230 
Voting: seven ayes; two abstentions from Mr. Clark and Ms. Cloutier-Cabral, motion carried. 231 
 232 

b. Update Board Member Contact List 233 
Superintendent informed members to provide any changes or updates to the SAU regarding their information. Cell 234 
phone numbers are important in case of a need to contact members over the weekend. 235 
 236 

c. Approve School Board Meeting Dates 237 
Superintendent provided an overview of the draft dates for board meetings for next year. It is his intention to bring 238 
forward a full working budget number to include personnel on the first joint meeting. There will be adjustments 239 
along the way for example in benefit. He will use a 5% increase to start and in November when the actual rates are 240 
available it will be adjusted.  241 
 242 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to approve the school board meeting 243 
dates for 2019-2020. * 244 
 245 
Mr. LoVerme requests to move the meeting on December 10 to December 17; no objection heard. 246 
 247 
*MOTION amended by Mr. LoVerme to include “as amended” SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc. 248 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 249 
 250 

d. Release of Special Education Capital Reserve Funds 251 
Superintendent reported 4 additional students moved in and entered the RISE program; these were not budgeted. The 252 
RISE program has been discussed on multiple occasions. It saves the district $49,000-$50,000 per student. Our fund 253 
balance is normally $150,000 and we have $133,000 cost we didn’t anticipate. He is requesting the Board approve 254 
the recommended specific motion in the document he provided which would allow the Trustee of the Trust Funds to 255 
withdraw $125,000 from the Educating Educationally Disabled Children Capital Reserve. He confirmed this is for 256 
the rest of the year and we are “in the red” with these accounts. He confirmed the balance of this capital reserve is 257 
$250,000. Concern was raised this is a “fairly big chunk” and would be another year before funds could be added to 258 
this capital reserve. Mr. Vanderhoof would prefer to use the fund balance vs. the capital reserve. Superintendent 259 
confirms funds could be taken out in increments and the Board could motion for a partial amount. In the middle or 260 
late April, he could return when there is a better concept of the fund balance. He notes there is also a cash flow issue, 261 
the bond payment and balloon checks coming up. He confirms 3 of the 4 students came in in the beginning of the 262 
school year therefore we won’t need this large of a chunk next year as they are already included. Ms. Moore 263 
confirmed students are enrolled in the RISE program based on a diagnosis of autism by a physician or psychiatrist. 264 
Superintendent adds we did anticipate some of this and did bring a transfer of $50,000 and discussed there may be 265 
additional. He is confident now in what is needed. This capital reserve has been in place for many years and not used 266 
to his knowledge. He is requesting for at least half of the $125,000 at this time which would allow for some 267 
flexibility but he will still approve all expenses prior to purchase orders being created. Given the business 268 
administrator leaving in a month he needs to have accountability of all funds. Chairman Ballou shares the concern 269 
and understands the cash flow issue.  Chairman Ballou confirms not much has been added to this capital reserve and 270 
the number was set 12-15 years ago, perhaps that should be looked at again to see if it is appropriate. 271 
 272 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire for the WLC School Board to approve the 273 
release of $80,000 from the Educating Educationally Disabled Children Capital Reserve, at this time, to 274 
accommodate for the increased cost to serve additional students in the RISE program.  275 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 276 
 277 
Superintendent noted these funds can only be used for this purpose and the Board will be kept informed. 278 

e. Sign MS-22 279 



 

   

Superintendent provided an overview of the MS-22 noting a line item budget needs to be submitted to the DOE on 280 
time (March 29) reflecting the approved budget for 2019-2020 of $12,679,674. This would include the reductions of 281 
$82,289 from the SAU proposed budget.  He provided a document which shows the recommended lines to be 282 
reduced which are included in the MS-22. If the Board decides to fund from other accounts, it would go through the 283 
transfer process which is a matter of public record and the Budget Committee would be aware. He confirms this does 284 
not restrict the Board from putting the $81,000 into a holding account to be designated as discussed. The 285 
recommended reductions to the lines include changes in salary plus FICA and NHRS for 1 of the 3 potential 286 
retirements, for a new MS math teacher, for a new MS science teacher; reducing electricity and oil due to more 287 
current CPI information, eliminate the request for the athletic trainer, eliminate request for FRES stage curtain and 288 
reduce furniture replacement for WLC; a grand total of $82,289.  Mr. Vanderhoof noted that two more poignant 289 
items have been salaries and utilities for adding money back into the budget and it seems odd they are the first things 290 
we are taking money away from. Superintendent confirmed there is not a reduction in staff.  Discussion was had 291 
regarding the athletic trainer and a question was raised how many times was there a need. Superintendent responded, 292 
he doesn’t think there was ever a time we didn’t need one, we just couldn’t find one. He explained we are not 293 
marketable for a position like this as a full-time person is not needed and a larger school district may have a 30-40-294 
hour position. They investigated having an EMT or ambulance but none were willing to provide the service we need. 295 
If we did find a service, he would be willing to come back to the Board to see if it can be funded.  The MS-22 will be 296 
signed at the end of the meeting. 297 

f. Policies-2nd Readings 298 
i. BZZZ-School Board Member Stipends 299 

Superintendent reviewed this is the 2nd reading and is a formal process for school board member stipends. A form 300 
will go out to members the first week of September; the stipend ($100) is paid out in the first pay period of March. 301 
Mr. Vanderhoof suggested to strike “any expenses related to” in the second sentence of the first paragraph and it 302 
should read “The purpose of the stipend is to reimburse board members for performing the functions of a board 303 
member”.  He also suggests turning in the form should be required and not assumed the stipend is not wanted. Mr. 304 
Legere agrees from an auditing stand point and suggests if the person doesn’t want to sign it or doesn’t, perhaps we 305 
write declined signature.  It was noted a member could be appointed after the time the form goes out. Superintendent 306 
noted it can be amended to include something like,” Board members appointed after September 1 has 30 days” etc. 307 
This policy will be brought back for a 3rd reading. 308 

ii. EB-Safety Program 309 
Superintendent reviewed this is the 2nd reading. Changes were recommended through the JLMC, a state required 310 
committee, and are to adhere to appropriate language from the DOE.  311 
 312 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Mr. Vanderhoof to accept the changes to policy EB-313 
Safety Program as presented. 314 
Voting: all aye motion carried unanimously. 315 
 316 

iii. EBBB-Accident Reports 317 
Superintendent reviewed changes to this policy are recommended through the JLMC to make the language 318 
appropriate.  This is the 2nd reading. 319 
 320 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Mr. Legere to accept the changes to policy EBBB-321 
Accident Reports as presented. 322 
Voting: all aye motion carried unanimously. 323 
 324 

iv. GBEBA-Staff Dress Code 325 
Superintendent reviewed this is the 2nd reading. Changes are in red. Theme days include spirit week and he believes 326 
it is appropriate for teachers to participate. 327 
 328 
A MOTION was made by Ms. LeBlanc and SECONDED by Ms. Fisk to accept the changes to policy GBEBA-Staff 329 
Dress Code as presented. 330 
Voting: all aye motion carried unanimously. 331 
 332 

X. COMMITTEE REPORTS 333 
i.  Facilities Committee 334 

Superintendent reported the Facilities Committee had a walk-through of LCS. There have been no heating issues this 335 
winter, no leaks, painting does need to be done as approved through the budget process. The building is in good 336 



 

   

shape and teachers and students seem to be enjoying the building. It was suggested to place the chairs and waste 337 
baskets on top of the tables to clean underneath at the end of the day and teachers to have spray cleaner available to 338 
clean the tops in the morning.  Superintendent agreed. 339 
 340 

XI. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES 341 
a. Resignations 342 

i. Lise Tucker, Business Administrator 343 
ii. Robert Deignan, Food Service Manager 344 

Superintendent reviewed the above resignations. Ms. Tucker is departing on April 19. The business administrator is a 345 
board interviewed position; we can work with the Municipal Association during transition. Ads have been placed for 346 
both positions.  Mr. Deignan will be departing June 30. 347 
 348 

XII. BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION 349 
 Mr. Vanderhoof spoke regarding the reserve fund discussed earlier. He would like it to be an action item on the next 350 
agenda to create a reserve fund in the amount of $81,000. Superintendent clarified it is not a “reserve fund” but a 351 
“holding account”. Reserve fund requires public vote. Superintendent confirmed you cannot keep using it year after 352 
year; the fund balance is returned to the tax payers at the end of the year. He added we would look at usage and how 353 
many gallons of fuel are used and could be determined it is not needed. Funds in a holding account will still show on 354 
the budget line but cannot be released without a vote from the School Board; not a budget transfer. If we were half 355 
way through the year and determined, we need a portion of the $81,000 we request to withdraw a certain amount to 356 
pay the bill. Funds are split up over all the buildings as the DOE requires us to create expenditures by school.   357 
 358 
Superintendent confirmed even though there is not a lot of participation in the tennis program, the court is used by 359 
community members. Annual repairs will be done as needed as included in the CIP. We will have a girls’ tennis team 360 
but not a boys’ team. The van will be used for transportation which saves some cost.   361 
 362 

XIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 363 
 Mr. Adam Lavallee, Lyndeborough, spoke regarding the $81,000 that was voted on and approved by the town and 364 
suggested you should read exactly what Mr. Bujak said and nowhere did he say he wants it to be put into a fund and 365 
he (Mr. Bujak) also said it was for non-union staff to get raises.  Mr. Lavallee spoke of the elevator issue at FRES 366 
and suggests the insurance company be called as you wouldn’t be covered since you had prior knowledge. He also 367 
spoke regarding “zeroing out” regarding vaping as he has a different definition.  He believes education is the best 368 
approach and notes students are doing it in the classrooms. He notes his wife was the substitute nurse when the 369 
students had the vaping presentation and they had several questions. He spoke of kids latching on to anything that is 370 
untrue and the importance of being sure the information is 100% true. He suggests teaching students about vaping in 371 
the 4th grade. 372 
 373 
Mr. Matt Simard, Lyndeborough, spoke regarding the holding fund and it is not denying anyone the use of that 374 
money, it only means by putting it into the holding fund so there is public discussion. He spoke of discretionary 375 
funding and if you have to move money around no one knows where it went; the School Board is allowed to do that. 376 
This only allows the public, who paid for it, to see where it went; this is the only thing the holding fund does. Mr. 377 
Clark question why you would want to stop there. Mr. Simard spoke that the School Board and Budget Committee 378 
outlined what they needed to run the school and takes into account the concerns of the public. They are always able 379 
to give cash back. The $81,000 was approved over that amount and he would like to see where it went.  Mr. Clark 380 
questioned if he would want to see that type of transparency for more than the $81,000. Yes, Mr. Simard responded. 381 
Chairman Ballou notes the Board will discuss it at the next meeting. Mr. Simard added, “if you didn’t need it and it 382 
stayed where it was, public trust would go through the roof”. 383 
 384 
Ms. Susan Ciatto, Wilton spoke regarding Mr. Bujak’s vote, voiced that also it was to include raises for non-union 385 
staff as the budget did not include this.  386 
 387 
Ms. Lisa Post, Lyndeborough spoke regarding the “special education funds that are moving over for this year” and 388 
questioned if we will receive revenue in the March/April payment to offset what we are spending. Superintendent 389 
responded he does not believe it meets the threshold ($49,000) for CAT aide. She questioned how many times the 390 
police came to the schools. Principal Bagley to research this.  She voiced the Milford’s food service program 391 
increased after they started a culinary program and on WMUR she saw that a student began a program at the school 392 
for those who didn’t have funds to pay off their food service account balances and raised funds to wipe them out.    393 



 

   

 394 
Ms. Laura Gifford, LCS school nurse, questioned if someone is on the teacher contract (CBA) is there anything that 395 
would limit the teacher from talking to the School Board directly; is there a rule or restriction. Superintendent 396 
responded there is a codicil in the contract that the WLCTA can request a meeting with the Board Chair at any time.  397 
She questioned, if we see a board member can we talk to them. Chairman Ballou explained when we leave the table 398 
we are board members but have no authority to do anything unless designated by the Board, we cannot make any 399 
promises, cannot take any action and cannot be student, or personnel related.  400 
 401 
Ms. Hastings questioned how many times the athletic trainer would have been needed and used during the school 402 
year. Superintendent responded he doesn’t have specifics on minor or major injuries in which a trainer would benefit 403 
the student. An athletic trainer also has a background and knowledge to help students in other ways other than just 404 
injuries, such as a student athlete with asthma.  He confirmed the athletic trainer was removed from the MS-22. 405 
 406 
Ms. Kelly Gibson, Wilton, questioned if the trainer could give injections, Superintendent confirmed no, it would be 407 
the school nurse.  She spoke to the Board indicating she sent an email to them and Mr. Dailey responded he would 408 
forward it to the Board. She questioned if anyone was planning on responding to the email sent 3 weeks ago. 409 
Chairman Ballou noted he has not read this email she is referring to and has just been nominated Chairman this 410 
evening. She voiced disappointment and feels she is being ignored. She adds, there are over 230 signatures that were 411 
about the subject. Regarding food service, she spoke of working for café services and sees the pros and cons and 412 
notes the community at large would be happy but it may not be the best economical choice. She further adds that 413 
people are happy with the food at FRES and not WLC. “Chef Deb is an amazing person and works diligently. The 414 
food is the same but the presentation is different and if you don’t go through your product and if you have anything 415 
moldy you have to get rid of it or it will all be moldy. We need to dive into what Chef Deb is doing and suggests to 416 
put her in the director position so she can help the district”. She spoke of the SPED capital reserve and says she 417 
knows of 3-4 students who need to use these funds for service and tells the Board the numbers are inaccurate. She 418 
spoke of an adult that should have had out of district placement for 2 years and that this was an issue with the last 419 
district also; if they did have (out of district placement) it would be eaten up. 420 
 421 
Mr. Bill Ryan, Lyndeborough spoke to clarify a misconception regarding the non-union staff not getting raises. He 422 
notes Superintendent Lane has said there was a line item for this. They are being taken care of, they have not been 423 
overlooked.   424 
 425 
Ms. Post spoke regarding the $81,000 holding account that Mr. Simard brought up on the floor at district meeting to 426 
be considered and was told to come here.  Chairman Ballou responded it will be on the next agenda. 427 
 428 

XIV. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 429 
 Mr. LoVerme questioned if the towns pay to use the schools for meetings. Superintendent responded there is a 430 
building usage formula and depending on the classification it falls under, they may or may not get charged.  Mr. 431 
LoVerme thanked Mr. Erb and his staff for staying late after the town meeting to clean up. 432 
 433 
Ms. LeBlanc welcomed the new members Mr. Clark and Ms. Cloutier-Cabral.  434 
 435 
Mr. Clark spoke regarding Con-Val filing a lawsuit to get more aid from the state and questioned if the Board would 436 
like to do anything to join that and file a brief in favor or not. Superintendent responded, that is a Board discussion 437 
and if members want this as a topic it would need to be on the agenda; some information has been provided to the 438 
Board.  Mr. Clark spoke of the concept to contact the Board by email and that some boards have a combined email. 439 
The government uses other options such as YouTube, Twitter etc. and he would like to look into other options as 440 
well.  He adds the public can videotape a board meeting but the cost for the Board to do it would need to be 441 
investigated. 442 
 443 
Chairman Ballou welcomed the new members and encouraged them to attend NHSBA’s new board member 444 
orientation and other topics are offered such as nonpublic. He suggested the Board may want to have a workshop for 445 
down the road to talk about meeting norms, right to know etc. as all could use a refresher. He has been thinking of 446 
future agenda building. Currently, when things come up they just get added and would like more organizing of it in 447 
general and perhaps it’s something that can be voted on.  Regarding board correspondence, he suggests having some 448 
sort of form or some way public can enter information and have it part of board correspondence just like a letter, it is 449 
public information.  450 



 

   

 451 
Ms. Lemire commented that she assumes the information that the Strategic Planning Committee gathered on food 452 
service will be shared with the new food service committee. She believes an analysis was done on how much each 453 
building lost in funds.  Superintendent responded, he has all the information and it will be provided.  454 
 455 
Ms. Cloutier-Cabral thanked the members for welcoming them and will have questions. She is interested in 456 
discussing the Con-Val suit and options around this and would like it to have this as a future agenda item. 457 
 458 
Mr. Legere questioned if there was an internal committee of the staff. Superintendent responded no. Mr. Legere 459 
spoke of a food service waste analysis that he believes was done and suggests it be included.  Mr. LoVerme 460 
responded he had asked for this but did not receive it. Mr. Legere noted policy BIA-New Board Member Orientation 461 
should be provided to new members. Superintendent responded he will distribute the information but did not want to 462 
do this all at once; it is in process. 463 
 464 

XV. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) 465 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Mr. Vanderhoof to enter Non-Public Session to discuss 466 
personnel and student matters RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) at 8:46pm. 467 
Voting: all aye via roll call vote; motion carried unanimously. 468 
  469 
 A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to extend the time period to choose an 470 
arbitrator for the WLCTA level 4 grievance by five (5) calendar days and in order for the board to meet with the 471 
WLCTA officers to discuss their request.   472 
Voting: (7-0-2) seven ayes, two abstentions from Mr. Vanderhoof and Mr. Legere; motion carried. 473 
 474 
A MOTION was made to exit the non-public session at 10:37pm by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire. 475 
Voting: (9-0) all aye; motion carried unanimously. 476 
 477 
  RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 478 
Public session reconvened at 10:37p.m. 479 
 480 
A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire. 481 
Voting: (9-0) all aye; motion carried unanimously. 482 
  483 
Discussion of future calendar dates. 484 
 485 
A MOTION was made to change the April 23rd school board meeting to April 30th by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED 486 
by Mr. LoVerme. 487 
Voting (9-0) all aye; motion carried unanimously. 488 
 489 

XVI. ADJOURNMENT 490 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to adjourn the Board meeting at 10:39pm. 491 
Voting:(9-0) all aye; motion carried unanimously. 492 
 493 
Respectfully submitted, 494 
Kristina Fowler 495 
 496 





 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  WLC School Board 
FROM: Bryan Lane 
DATE:  3/21/19 
RE:  Community Request to Restrict Transferring 2019-20 Funds 
 
At the school district meeting and subsequently at the last school board meeting, a citizen 
requested that the board consider that the $81,000 that was added to the budget approved by 
the budget committee and the school board be restricted in how it could be expended. 
 
The request revolved around the funding of utilities. The citizen suggested that if there was a 
need to expend the funds as estimated that would appropriate.  If there was an over estimation 
of the funds required, the suggestion was that the funds be returned to the tax payer. 
 
Recommend a motion: 
 
“For the 2019-20 school budget, funds from the following accounts be held specifically for 
these purposes. No budget transfers, regardless of the dollar amount shall be created without 
the permission of the school board.: 
 
 Description  Account    Budget Dollar Figure 
 Telephone  04.2321.531.01T    $  3,780 
    04.2321.531.01T    $  2,412 
    04.2321.531.02T    $14,838 
    04.2321.531.03T    $17,838 
    04.2321.531.11T    $24,456 
    04.2321.531.12T    $  9,804 
    04.2321.531.01T    $  2,412 
 Oil   04.2620.624.01    $  1,700 
    04.2620.624.02    $33,441 
    04.2620.624.03    $40,872 
    04.2620.624.12    $  7,641  
 Fuel   04.2620.624.11    $29,493 
  
 
Such accounts to include utility costs with a collective projected increase of $82,299 over the 
2018-19 school year budget.” 
 
 
 
 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-654-8088 
 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 



 

 
The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To:     WLC School Board 
From:      Bryan Lane 
Subject:  Technology Audit Bid 
Date:    April 1, 2019 
 
A request for proposal (RFP) – bid went out for the purpose of providing services for a technology audit 
for the district.  We received communicaƟon from four bidders and received two bids in return.  The 
request for proposal included the following: 
 

Adhering to NIST SP 800 standards including: 
 
171:3.1.1  171:3.6.1  171:3.12.2 
171:3.1.2  171:3.6.2  171:3.12.3 
171:3.1.5  171:3.7.1  171.3.13.1 
171:3.1.8  171:3.7.2  171:3.13.6 
171:3.1.13  171:3.7.3  171:3.13.16 
171:3.1.16  171:3.8.1  171:3.14.1 
171:3.1.18  171:3.8.2  171:3.14.2 

  171:3.2.1  171:3.8.3  171:3.14.3 
  171:3.2.2  171.3.8.5  171.3.14.4 
  171:3.3.1  171:3.9.1  171:3.2.7 
  171:3.3.2  171:3.9.2  171:3.12.1 
  171:3.4.1  171:3.10.1  171:3.5.2 
  171:3.4.2  171:3.10.2  171:3.11.3 
  171.3.4.7  171;.3.11.1 
  171:3.5.1  171:3.11.2 
 
In addition to audit systems to determine: 
 
Auditing history for telephone system including if recording of conversations took place, who did the auditing, 
under whose approval and the documentation for such auditing.  Determine that if recording took place, were 
monitored recordings in violation of FERPA or HIPPA protected information.  Information to come from vendor. 
 
Auditing history for email systems including if monitoring of email took place, who did the monitoring, under 
whose approval and the documentation for such monitoring.  Determine that if monitoring took place, were 
monitored emails in violation of FERPA or HIPPA protected information.  This is to include internal and external 
systems. 
\ 
Auditing history for internet monitoring (screen mirroring) including if monitoring took place, who did the 
monitoring, under whose approval and the documentation for such monitoring.  Determine that if monitoring took 
place, were monitored recordings in violation of FERPA or HIPPA protected information.  If such monitoring took 
place, was there any monitoring of personal email.  
 
Proposals should include: 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road 
Lyndeborough, NH  03082 

603-654-8088 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 
  



 

 
The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 The ability to do the entire scope of work 
 If portions of the scope of work cannot be accomplished, what, if any, regulations would restrict 

the ability to those portions of the scope of work 
 The estimated time to complete the scope of work 
 The requirements of the vendor to access resources from within SAU 63 
 The requirements of the vendor to access resources outside SAU 63 

 
 
Focal Point 
$45,880 
 
Corporate Data and Voice SoluƟons 
$18,225 
 
The specifics of the bid are included in this document. 
 
To that purpose I recommend a: 
 

MoƟon that the Wilton‐Lyndeborough CooperaƟve School Board award the Technology Audit 
Bid to Corporate Data and Voice SoluƟons in the amount of $18,225.  Furthermore, for the 
school board to authorize to the sum of $18,225 be withdrawn from the Wilton‐Lyndeborough 
CooperaƟve Technology Advancement Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 
technology audit.  

 
 
 
 
 
 































































 

 
The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMO 

 

 
 
To:   Bryan Lane, Superintendent of Schools 

School Board Members 
 
From:    Lise Tucker, Business Administrator 
 
Subject: Renewal of Infinite Visions Subscription 
 
Date:  April 2, 2019 
 
 
It has been brought to our attention that our subscription expired this fall.  We are currently in the 
automatic one year renewal phase.  Therefore, we are requesting that the board approve a multi-year 
renewal for our financial system software.   
 
This amendment agreement is for the period of November 1, 2018 to October 31, 2023 (five years).  As 
stated in the attached, the yearly maintenance fee of the hosted application is $19,500.  There is no 
increase.  This is the same annual fee since inception of June 2013. 
 
Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter. 
It is greatly appreciated. 
 
 
Motion: 
To approve the multi-year agreement with Tyler Technologies for the subscription fee to IVEE – SaaS. 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

  192 Forest Road 

Lyndeborough, NH  03082 

603-654-8088 

 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 

 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 

  

  



Amendment to Subscription Agreement No. 2013‐0128A 

 
 

Amendment to Subscription Agreement 
 

This Amendment is made between Tyler Technologies, Inc., with offices at 5519 53rd Street, Lubbock, Texas 
79414 (“Tyler”) and the SAU #63 Wilton‐Lyndeborough, with offices at 192 Forest Road, Lyndeborough, NH 
03082 (“Client”). 
 

WHEREAS, Client and Tyler are parties to the contract numbered 2013‐0128A dated June 21, 2013 governing 
Client’s access to the software and services (“Software”) described therein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement expires October 31, 2018;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and promises set forth in this 
Agreement, Tyler and Client agree as follows: 
 

1. The term of the Agreement is hereby renewed for a five (5) year term commencing on November 1, 
2018 and expiring on October 31, 2023 (“Term”). Upon expiration of this term, this Amendment will 
renew automatically for additional one (1) year renewal terms at our then‐current SaaS Fees unless 
terminated in writing by either party at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the then‐current 
renewal term.  

2. Tyler shall invoice Client $19,500.00 for the first year’s annual subscription fee in advance of the Term 
renewal date, and in each year through the end of the Term. 

3. The subscription fees are based on the number of five (5) users described in the Agreement, and the 
Software may be accessed by no more than this number. Additional user subscriptions may be added 
during the Term at the same pricing as that for the current subscriptions, prorated for the remainder 
of the Term in effect at the time the additional user subscriptions are added. 

4. All terms and conditions of the Agreement not herein amended shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, a duly authorized representative of each party has executed this Amendment as of the 
date(s) set forth below. 
 
Tyler Technologies, Inc.          SAU #63 Wilton‐Lyndeborough 
Local Government Division 
 
 
By:              By:             
 
Name:              Name:             
 
Title:              Title:             
 
Date:              Date:             
  



 

 

BZZZ – SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER STIPENDS 
 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board members will be eligible for an annual stipend 
of $100.00.  The purpose of the stipend is to reimburse board members for any expenses related 
to performing the functions of a board member. 
 
At the first board meeting in September, all board members will receive a “School Board 
Member Stipend Form”. Completion of this form will be required by board members.  Each 
member will be asked as to whether or not they wish to receive the stipend and designate that on 
the form.  This form needs to be returned to the Business Administrator no later than October 1 
of each year whether the board member chooses to receive the stipend or not.  If a board member 
chooses to receive the stipend, they will receive a W-4 form for tax purposes.  The W-4 form 
will only need to be filled out once during the continuous service of a school board member.  
The stipend will be paid out in the first pay period of March. 
 
Board members appointed after September 1 will have 30 days in which to complete the School 
Board Member Stipend Form from the time of their appointment. 
 

First Reading:  March 5, 2019 
Second Reading: March 19, 2019 
Final Adoption:  

 



DFA - INVESTMENT 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board authorizes the Wilton-Lyndeborough 
Cooperative School District Treasurer, working in conjunction with the Superintendent and 
his/her designee and pursuant to RSA 197:23-a, to invest the funds of the District subject to the 
following objectives and standards of care. 

OBJECTIVES

The three objectives of investment activities shall be safety, liquidity, and yield. 

1.  Safety of principal is the foremost objective in this policy. Investments shall be 
undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital by mitigating 
credit and interest rate risk. This will be accomplished by limiting the type of investments 
and institutions to those stipulated by statute and fully covered by FDIC insurance or 
collateral approved pursuant to applicable law. 

2.  Liquidity of the investment portfolio shall remain sufficient to meet all operating 
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. 

3.  Yield. The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a 
market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the 
investment risk constraints and liquidity needs. Return on investment is of secondary 
importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. 

STANDARDS OF CARE 

1.  Prudence. The standard of prudence to be used by the District Treasurer and 
Superintendent, or his/her designee involved in the investment process, shall be the 
"prudent person" standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall 
portfolio. They are directed to use the Government Finance Officer Association’s 
Recommended Practices and Policy Statements Related to Cash Management as a guide 
to the prudent investment of public funds. 

2.  Conflict of interest. Officials involved in the investment process shall not engage in or 
have a financial interest in any activity or investment that could conflict with or could 
create the appearance of conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or 
which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions.  Investment 
officials, Auditors, and School Board Members shall disclose to the School Board any 
personal, business-related, or financial interests in financial institutions with which they 
conduct business that represent more than one percent ownership. They shall also 
disclose financial relationships or business responsibilities that represent more than one 
percent ownership in the organization that could be related to the impartial management 
of the District’s financial assets.  Where conflicts of interest or the appearance of conflict 
of interest cannot be avoided through policies or procedures approved by the School 
Board, affected officials(s) shall recuse themselves from subject decisions. 

3.  Internal Controls. The District Treasurer and Superintendent or his/her designee shall 
establish a system of internal controls which shall be documented in writing. The internal 
controls shall be reviewed periodically by the School Board and an independent auditor. 



The Board will annually review and adopt the investment policy. 

Legal References: 
RSA 197:23-a, Treasurer’s Duties 
RSA 383:22, Public Deposit Investment Pool 
RSA 386:57, Collateralization of Funds 

See Policy DFA-R 

Final Adoption: June 2, 2010 
Revision: February 11, 2014 
2nd Revision: April 7, 2015 
Annual Adoption: May 10, 2016, May 9, 2017, May 8, 2018



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 

603-654-8088

Bryan K. Lane 

Superintendent of Schools 

Betty Moore, M.Ed. 

Director of Student Support Services 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
RE: 

William Fox 
Bryan K. Lane 
March 25, 2019 
Confirmation of Resignation 

In accordance with Policy GCQC: 

Lise Tucker 

Business Administrator 

"A resignation by a licensed employee who is under contract to the school should be submitted to 
the Superintendent. Said resignation of a licensed employee may take effect on a date approved by 
the Superintendent acting as agent of the School Board." 

I am in receipt of you letter of resignation effective June 30, 2019. Best wishes for your retirement. 

CC: Personnel File 
WLC School Board 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 
603-654-8088

Bryan K. Lane 
Superintendent of Schools 

Betty Moore, M.Ed. 
Director of Student Support Services 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 

RE: 

David Finch 
Bryan K. Lane 
March 25, 2019 
Confirmation of Resignation 

In accordance with Policy GCQC: 

Lise Tucker 
Business Administrator 

"A resignation by a licensed employee who is under contract to the school should be submitted to 
the Superintendent. Said resignation of a licensed employee may take effect on a date approved by 
the Superintendent acting as agent of the School Board." 

I am in receipt of you letter of resignation effective June 30, 2019. Best wishes for your retirement. 

CC: Personnel File 
WLC School Board 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basrs of race, coior, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 

603-654-8088

Bryan K. Lane 

Superintendent of Schools 

Betty Moore, M.Ed. 

Director of Student Support Services 

TO: 

FROM: 
DATE: 

RE: 

Marcia Contarino 
Bryan K. Lane 
March 25, 2019 
Confirmation of Resignation 

In accordance with Policy GCQC: 

Lise Tucker 

Business Administrator 

"A resignation by a licensed employee who is under contract to the school should be submitted to 
the Superintendent. Said resignation of a licensed employee may take effect on a date approved by 
the Superintendent acting as agent of the School Board." 

I am in receipt of you letter ofresignation effective June 30, 2019. Best wishes for your retirement. 

CC: Personnel File 
WLC School Board 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin. age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs. activities or employment practice. 



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 

603-654-8088

Bryan K. Lane 

Superintendent of Schools 

Betty Moore, M.Ed. 

Director of Student Support Services 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 

RE: 

Judith Wing 
Bryan K. Lane 
March 28, 2019 
Confirmation of Resignation 

In accordance with Policy GCQC: 

Lise Tucker 

Business Administrator 

"A resignation by a licensed employee who is under contract to the school should he submitted to 
the Superintendent. Said resignation of a licensed employee may take effect on a date approved by 
the Superintendent acting as agent of the School Board." 

1 am in receipt of you letter of resignation effective June 30, 2019. Best wishes for your retirement. 

CC: Personnel File 
WLC School Board 

The Wilton••Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 

603-654-8088

Bryan K. Lane 

Superintendent of Schools 

Betty Moore, M.Ed. 

Director of Student Support Services 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 

RE: 

Kevin Verratti 
Bryan K. Lane 
March 25, 2019 
Confirmation of Resignation 

In accordance with Policy GCQC: 

Lise Tucker 

Business Administrator 

"A resignation by a licensed employee who is under contract to the school should be submitted to 
the Superintendent. Said resignation of a licensed employee may take effect on a date approved by 
the Superintendent acting as agent of the School Board." 

I am in receipt of you letter of resignation effective April 19, 2019. As agreed, if there are issues that we 
need help with as we work through the hiring process I will reach out to you for assistance. I thank you for 
your service to the children and communities of Lyndeborough and Wilton. 

CC: Personnel File 
WLC School Board 

The Wilton�Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board 
FROM: Bryan Lane 
DATE  4/8/19 
RE:  Elevator at FRES 
 
At the last school board meeting a concern was raised that the elevator at FRES had an expired 
inspection document.   
 
 
I contacted both Mr. O’Connell and Mr. Erb (Facilities Director) at 5AM the next morning in 
regard to the elevator at FRES.  My original instruction was that the program for the student 
who needed the elevator would need to be moved to a floor with ground level egress and no 
one should be in the elevator.   
 
Mr. Erb responded that the elevator was inspected in a timely manner on January 24, 2019.  I 
had Mr. Erb post the inspection form prior to students arriving. In contacting the Department 
of Labor, the elevator was inspected again on February 19, the last day the previous certificate 
was eligible.  The January 24 date was too early; it was unclear as to why.  They indicated 
that they had invoiced the district on March 6th, it is their practice not to issue documents until 
payment is received.  The Department of Labor faxed me the document indicating that the 
elevator had been done on the 19th and it was posted in the elevator prior to 11AM that 
morning. 
 
I emailed parents that morning to let them know the elevator was safe. 

 
 I have instructed the Principals and the Facilities Director to ensure that inspections are done 
for elevators, kitchen devices, etc. in a timely manner.  Also, that if we do not receive the 
required permits in a timely manner that they are to inform me so I can assist the district in 
getting the appropriate paper work. 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-654-8088 
 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 


	Board Packet 4.9.19
	WLC School Board Agenda 4.9.19
	Public Hearing-Unanticipated Revenue
	Memo for Unanticipated Hearing 040219
	198 20B Hearing Details 040919

	Supt Report April 9, 2019
	Business Office Report 040919
	Elementary Principal Report 4-9-19
	WLC Principals Report April 2019
	WLC principal 4.9 part 1
	wlc principal 4.9 part 2
	THE WLC NEWSLETTER AprilEdition

	Curr. Report_4.9.2019
	Rescind Resignation
	Donation
	Policies-BEA-BEDB-BEDH-KE-KEB
	BEA-Regular Board Meetings
	BEDB-Agenda Preparation and Dissemination
	BEDH-Public Participation at Board Meetings
	KE - Public Complaints
	KEB-Public Complaints About School Personnel, Employees, Students or Administration

	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 3.19.19
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 3.19.19
	Mannarino public comment 3.19.19

	Holding Funds
	Technology Audit Bids-Award
	Technology Audit Bid award
	Focal Point Data Risk
	part 1
	part 2
	part 3
	part 4
	part 5

	Corporate Data and Voice Solutions

	Tyler Tech Renewal April 2019
	Tyler Tech Renewal Memo to Board 040219
	SAU 63 Amendment 103118

	BZZZ- School Board Member Stipends 3rd read-went to board
	DFA-Investment Policy annual adoption
	Retirements-Resignations
	Retirements
	Judi Wing Retirement


	fres elevator 4.9.19 hand carried



